_Earth Negotiations Bulletir
‘3 " AReporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/climate/cop6/tech_ws/lulucf/

Vol. 12 No. 138

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Tuesday, 11 July 2000

WORKSHOP ON LAND USE, LAND-USE
CHANGE AND FORESTRY
MONDAY, 10 JULY 2000

The workshop on land use, land-use change and forestry
(LULUCEF) began with opening speeches and an overview of key
issuesraised inthe |PCC Specia Report on LULUCEF. Participants
then considered afforestation, reforestation and deforestation
(ARD) under Article 3.3 of the Kyoto Protocol in morning and
afternoon sessions.

OPENING PLENARY

Harald Dovland (Norway), Chair of the Subsidiary Body for
Technological and Scientific Advice (SBSTA) of the United
Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (FCCC),
opened the meeting and wel comed participants. He said the new
IPCC Special Report on LULUCF marked awatershed inwork on
thisissue and provided a strong scientific basisfor deciding on the
various policy optionsavailable. He noted the upcoming 1 August
deadline for the submission of country-specific dataand informa-
tion on proposalsby Annex | Partiesfor activitiesrelated to Article
3.3(ARD) and 3.4 (additional activities) of the Kyoto Protocol.
Noting that COP-6 wasrapidly approaching, heinformed partici-
pantsthat consultations on LUL UCF had been tentatively sched-
uled for the second week of October.

Antoni Tokarczuk, Minister of the Environment of Poland,
noted that thisworkshop wasbeing held in responseto arequest by
SBSTA to analyzethe IPCC Special Report in the context of the
requirements of Protocol Articles 3.3 and 3.4. He stressed the
importance of wiseland use and forestry policiesin addressing
climate change concerns, and outlined elements of Poland’'s
National Sustainable Forestry Policy, including, inter alia: conser-
vation of existing forest areas; promotion of natural forest regener-
ation; and reduction of clear-cutting. Stating that LULUCF isone
of the most important i ssues addressed by the Protocol, he urged
participantsto work to achieve “ concrete results’ at this meeting
that could support the Protocol’s entry into forcein 2002.

COP-5 President Jan Szyszko (Poland) stressed the opportu-
nity provided by thisworkshop to make progresson LULUCF. He
noted the carbon storage, biodiversity, socio-economic and other
benefits of sound forestry policy.

Halldor Thorgeirsson (Iceland), Co-Chair of the SBSTA
contact group on LULUCEF, noted concerns expressed by anumber
of Partiesregarding the agendaitemsrelating to discussion of
possible elements of decisions. He stressed that thisworkshop was
not aforum for negotiating outcomes.

IPCC Chair Robert Watson highlighted key issuesfor deci-
sions, including: defining aforest, including single or multiple
thresholds of canopy cover, and aggradation and degradation;
excluding or including the harvest-regeneration cycle and the
problem of accurately reflecting changesin carbonin the atmo-
sphere; addressing the question of permanence; differentiating
between direct and indirect human-induced activities; identifying
which poolsto monitor, including issuesrelated to costs, the need
for precision and technical feasibility, and monitoring of project-
based activities; addressing 1990-2008 incentives and disincen-
tives; and determining quantitative potentials considering
accounting approaches and the definition of aforest, including
effectsunder asinglethreshold.

PROTOCOL ARTICLE 3.3: AFFORESTATION,
REFORESTATION AND DEFORESTATION

PRESENTATIONS: Bernard Schlamadinger, |PCC/Joan-
neum Research, Austria, provided an overview of ARD issues
under the IPCC Special Report, focusing on the harvest-regenera-
tion cycle, aggradation/degradation and the limit of forest-
nonforest conversions. He said that, under the IPCC definitional
scenario, ARD activities are based on transitions between forest
and non-forest uses. Under the FAO definitional scenarios, the
harvest-regeneration cycleisincluded and aggradati on/degrada-
tion can beincluded, although thisrequires multiplethresholdsin
the definition of aforest. He demonstrated the implications of defi-
nitional and accounting options and noted that the accounted stock
change generally would be different from the actual stock change
during acommitment period, whichwould lead to artificial credits
and debits. He concluded that the IPCC definitional scenario
provided the highest consistency between reported and actual
changesin stocksin land undergoing ARD activities, noting that
thisscenarioislikely to result in debitsin Annex | Partiesoverall,
and that aggradati on/degradation would be easier to cover under
Article 3.4 than under Article 3.3.

Michael Gytarsky, Institute of Global Climate and Ecol ogy,
Roshydromet and Russian Academy of Sciences, made a presenta-
tion on definitions of ARD within the framework of Articles 3.3
and 3.4 of the Protocol, suggesting that these definitions be
extended to include various human activitiesaimed at reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and increasing sinks. He suggested
considering theinclusion of fire prevention asahuman-induced
activity under Article 3.4.

Klas Osterberg, Principal Technical Officer, Swedish Environ-
mental Protection Agency, discussed Swedish carbon budgetsin
relation to the Protocol. He outlined cal cul ations on above-ground
biomass carbon and emphasized that Article 3.3 would not benefit

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Emily Boyd <e.boyd@uea.ac.uk>, Malena Sell <malena@iisd.org>, and Chris
Spence <chris@iisd.org>. The Editor isLynn Wagner <lynn@iisd.org> and the Managing Director is Langston James"Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. Funding and

logistical support for thisissue of Earth NegotiationsBulletin is provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry
of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA and DFAIT), the United States (through USAID), the SwissAgency for Environment, Forestsand L andscape
(SAEFL), the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-ENV). General Support for the Bulletin during
2000 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of
Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment
of Finland, the Government of Australia, and BP Amoco. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206.
11SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, M anitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinionsexpressed in the Earth
NegotiationsBulletin are those of the authorsand do not necessarily reflect the viewsof 11SD and other funders. Excerptsfrom the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used
in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercia publications, contact the Managing
Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution listsand can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.callinkages'. The satellite
imagewastaken above Bonn©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth NegotiationsBulletin, send e-mail to theM anaging Director
at <kimo@iisd.org>.




Tuesday, 11 July 2000

Vol. 12 No. 138 Page 2

Sweden, asslow growth in early rotation cannot compensate for
harvested carbon, and could instead create a significant carbon
debit.

Yuji Kimura, Office of Research and I nformation, Environment
Agency of Japan, made apresentation on ARD under Protocol
Article 3.3. On selection of adefinition and accounting framework
for Article 3.3 activities, he stated that these should includeincen-
tivesto promote sinks activities. He highlighted incentivesto
promote forest management in Annex | countrieswherethe
harvesting-regeneration cycleisthe key factor, and said the defini-
tion and accounting framework should encourage carbon seques-
tration in the harvesting-regeneration cycle. He supported the FAO
activity-based accounting method, asit can promote appropriate
harvesting and regeneration.

Yeshey Penjor, National Greenhouse Gas Project M anager,
National Environmental Commission of Bhutan, discussed
LULUCF inanational context. He defined land-use planning asa
means of supporting farmersand rural communities dependent on
natural resourcesto increase their standard of living sustainably
without diminishing the future resource base.

Kazimierz Rykowski, Professor of Forestry, Polish Forest
Research Institute, highlighted the importance of devel oping a set
of definitions and accounting procedures, aswell asameasuring
and monitoring system. Noting difficultiesin reaching agreement
on the definition of aforest, he suggested focusing instead on
seeking definitions and descriptions of ARD and “forestry activi-
ties.” While agreeing with the |PCC’s Special Report that afforesta-
tion and reforestation should be classified asforestry activities, he
said deforestation should not be, asit does not take place within
forest management.

DI SCUSSION: Inthe ensuing discussion, FRANCE, speaking
on behalf of the EU, said its positionisstill under consideration.
However, he highlighted the Council of Ministers' Decision of 23
June 2000, which notesthat, inter alia: theinclusion of sinks
should not undermine the incentives for emissions reductions or
biodiversity conservation; adecision on inclusion of further activi-
tiesunder Article 3.4 should not apply until after the first commit-
ment period, unless concernsrel ating to scal e, uncertainty and risks
areresolved; sinks should not beincluded under the CDM; and
decisions should be consistent with sustainabl e forest management.

The UK called for asimple, environmentally-defensible frame-
work for decisions and accounting approaches. WWF addressed
theissue of control of forest fires, and questioned how abaseline
could be established. On using a L eaf Arealndex asamethod for
measuring carbon stocks, Robert Watson suggested that thiswas
not a particularly useful approach.

Onthedefinition of aforest, FINLAND called for the use of
existing FAO definitions, which countries are already familiar
with. BOLIVIA stressed that adopting asimple, single threshold
definition of aforest would result in aloss of accuracy, and said the
approach needsimprovement. JAPAN called for theinclusion of
the harvesting-regeneration cycle under Article 3.3 to provide
incentivesto fully utilize sinks, especially in countrieswith little
opportunity for increasing forested areas. NORWAY opposed this
suggestion, stressing the need to keep accounting simple. He
supported the |PCC framework, but stressed the need to addressthe
problem that increases in carbon stocksin boreal forestswould
generate debits under the accounting framework.

On ARD and forests, AUSTRALIA suggested including
Article3.3and 3.4in asingleframework, reinforced by ARD defi-
nitions. He noted the differences between afforestation, reforesta-
tion and deforestation, highlighting that deforestation needs an
accounting framework that ensuresthat the extent of land-use
changeis monitored. FAO emphasi zed the dynamism of forestry
definitionsand acknowl edged that current FA O definitionsmay not

fully meet the needs of carbon accounting. He said FAO will
continuerevisiting the question of definitionsand will seek input
and suggestions. TUVALU, on behalf of AOSIS, suggested consid-
ering not only ecosystem accounting but al so transactional
accounting. He highlighted the varying levels of technical capa-
bility of Partiesto make accounting measurements.

On transparency, GERMANY emphasized the importance of a
transparent accounting system that allowsthose not involved in the
Expert Review Teamsto have accessto areas of afforestation.

Several delegates addressed theissue of potential discrimina-
tion or loopholesrelating to credits and debits due to the timing of
thefirst commitment period and the relevant text in the Protocol.
AUSTRALIA and FINLAND proposed that sub-rules or exclu-
sions could be developed to avoid any unintended consequences—
such as potential encouragement of deforestation prior to, rather
than during, thefirst commitment period, in order to avoid debits.
AOSI S said theimplications of sub-ruleswould need to be consid-
ered. He stressed that commitment periods should run contigu-
ously, and said policy-makers should take alonger-term
perspective that accounts for the fact that di sadvantages accrued
during thefirst commitment period would be likely to disappear in
the second or third period, depending on the length of the forestry
rotation period. Co-Chair Thorgeirsson said exceptions or sub-
rules should focus on the period prior to the first commitment
period, and agreed with participants comments that commitment
periods should be contiguous.

Oninclusion of non-CO2 greenhouse gases, FINLAND
stressed that not enough isknown of the balancesin activitiesunder
Article 3.3 for awell-informed decision. Emphasizing the need for
simplicity, the UK and JAPAN argued against inclusion of non-
CO2 greenhouse gases. AUSTRALIA, withthe NETHERLANDS,
supported including all greenhouse gases, adding that the intent
behind Article 3.3 was not to focus solely on CO2. He highlighted
therisk of unintended effectsif acomprehensive approach is not
taken, citing the case of applying fertilizersto enhance CO2 uptake
and unintentionally increasing N20 emissions. IRELAND said
including all greenhouse gaseswas areasonable proposal, while
cautioning that methodological issueswould need to be resolved.

The USsaid activitiesunder Article 3.4 could be used to
addresslimitationsin activitiesunder Article 3.3. She said
harvested wood products should be included as amanaged pool
within the accounting framework. She highlighted the ideathat
definitions could vary by Party, involving areview processto
ensuretechnical credibility and consistency over time. On the defi-
nition of aforest, she said the FAO definitions have not been
adopted for carbon accounting, and need to be considered more
carefully. She preferred definitionsto be made at the Party level.
She questioned the role of sub-rulesand whether their purpose was
to provideincentivesfor future behavior or penalize and reward
past behavior.

Onsoil carbon, AOSI Ssaid presentations had addressed above-
ground carbon stocks, but noted that they did not necessarily take
carbon stocks below ground into consideration. GERMANY,
opposed by JAPAN, supported inclusion of soil carbon under
Article 3.3, saying it would giveincentivesfor sustainable manage-
ment, while cautioning against creditsfor carbon that has not been
genuinely accumul ated. The UK said accounting procedures
should not be too detailed.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
ARTICLE 3.4: Participants will meet in morning, afternoon
and evening sessionsto consider additional human-induced activi-
tiesunder Protocol Article 3.4, beginning at 9:00 am.



